SIA 1355

St. Michael's

8/A

Parish Almanac 1918

Bunnbille, Ontario

Pianos, Player Pianos, Organs, Phonographs

AND ALL MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS

Before purchasing your Piano write for Special Booklet on our plan of selling ${\tt WITHOUT\ INTEREST.}$

PIANOS \$250 TO \$500

PLAYERS \$500 TO \$850

LARGE STOCK ALWAYS FOR INSPECTION

FARES REFUNDED

W. B. ROLLASON

"THE NO-INTEREST PIANO HOUSE"

117 DIVISION ST.

ICCOCOIC

Phone 899.

WELLAND

JOHN CLARK

Hndertaker

SUCCESSOR TO J. A. SCHOLFIELD

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

E. J. AIKENS

WATCHMAKER
JEWELER AND ENGRAVER

Official Time Inspector for T. H. & B. Railway
ISSUER OF MARRIAGE LICENSES

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

JOHN J. CLEARY

GENERAL

INSURANCE

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

THE PARISH ALMANAC

Church of St. Michael, the Archangel

REV. P. J. DONOVAN, PASTOR

The Advertisers helped to pay for this Almanac. Trade with them.

Edited and Published by the Rev. P. J. Donovan, Dunnville

DUNNVILLE. ONTARIO, 1918

The Early Days in Dunnville and its Vicinity

P. J. Donovan

This is a short story of the early days in Dunnville and in the neighboring townships. As the narrative proceeds, keep in mind that in this brief history it is impossible to relate everything that is known about these early times, and at this late date it is not always easy to get accurate information on the subject. However there is enough matter here to create interest. The period covered reaches to 1878. Some of the information is taken from "The Illustrated Historical Atlas of the County of Haldimand,' published in 1879 by H. R. Page & Co., Toronto, Ont., and the rest the writer has picked up here and there at different times.

DUNNUILLE

On the high ground along the Grand River, within a short distance of the south-eastern boundary of the present town, is the Klingender farm, the original site of Dunnville. This, no dcubt, is the place where Squire Anthony, one of the very early settlers, made his home some time before the dam and Feeder Canal were built. Mr. Fred Klingender, who is now living on this property, and who was a baby when his father moved here nearly eighty years ago, says that a grist and a saw mill, a store and a distillery stood on the place, and that the remains of the foundations of some of these old buildings still remain. A part of the timber used in the construction of his present dwelling house was taken from a building once used here as a hotel, A brickyard was also located on this site.

About 1825 Solomon Minor settled

on the present site of Dunnville, and two years later the construction of the dam across the Grand River was begun. It was at first proposed to dam the river at Port Maitland, but the company was prevented from doing so by Commodore Barron, then in command of the naval station there, who refused to allow the dam to be built within five miles of the mouth of the The present site of the dam river. was, therefore, selected, and as soon as the selection was made Oliver Phelps bought three lots from the Hon. Henry John Bolton, and had them laid out into village lots, which were sold, and buildings were soon erected on them. The progress of the new village was for some time very slow, as most of the laborers employed on the dam and the Feeder lived in boarding houses, and after the works were completed moved away. At the time there were no roads in the adjacent townships communicating with Dunnville, only a path along the north side of the river bank. The Robinson Road was chopped out in 1833, and the Diltz Road the following year, but neither was fit for travel for a few years af terwards, except in winter or late in the summer. The Robinson Road was not rendered passable for teams until later. Mr. Wilkinson of Buffalo was the contractor for the building of the dam, which with the Feeder was built by the Welland Canal Co., of which the late Hon. Wm. H. Merritt was the promoter and manager. The Feeder was finished on the 28th of September, 1829, on which day the water was first let in. For years the Feeder was so shallow that when the weeds grew up in summer the Company had to have

F. J. RAMSEY

(ESTABLISHED 1975)

IMPORTER DRY GOODS

MEN'S AND LADIES' READY-TO-WEAR DEPARTMENT
CARPETS, RUGS AND WALL PAPERS, BOOTS AND SHOES
GROCERIES

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO

King Edward Creamery

FOR SWEET OR SOUR CREAM

WE PAY THE HIGHEST PRICE, BUTTER FAT, IF TESTING IS DONE BY THE SCALE SYSTEM

WE SOLICIT YOUR ORDERS FOR ICE CREAM, OF WHICH WE MAKE THE BEST QUALITY

T. A. STEVENS - PROPRIETOR

WHAT WE ARE

The Rexall Company is the largest and most reliable Drug Company in Canada. We have a large factory in Toronto. The secret of our success is good faith with the public. We guarantee every Rexall preparation to give satisfaction. If it does not, we refund the full price paid, and you are the judge.

R. A. HARRISON

THE REXALL STORE

DUNNVILLE

13

14 15 16

18

20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 1

26 8

27 5

28 1

297

30 7

Last

New

First Full

The Dunnville Floral Co.

W. J. PLUMRIDGE, MANAGER

POTTED PLANTS, ALL CUT FLOWERS IN SEAS N FUNERAL DESIGNS A SPECIALTY WEDDING BOUQUETS, ETC.

GREENHOUSES ON JOHN STREET.

PHONE 14.

January

1 T.	Circumcision	of	our	Lord.—Day
	of Obligati	on		

- 2 W. The Holy Name-Octave of St. Stephen
- 3 Th. Octave of St. John Evangelist. -St. Genevieve, V.
- First Friday-Octave of Holy Innocents.
- 5 S. Vigil-St. Telesphorus. P. M.

6 S. Epiphany of Our Lord.

- 7 M. St. Lucian, M.
- St. Apoll naris, Bp. C.
- 9 W. SS. Julian and Basilissa, MM.
- 10 Th. St. William, Bp. C.
- 11 F. St. Hyginus, P. M.
- 12 S. St. Arcadius, M.
- 13 S. First after Epiphany.
- 14 M. St. Hilary, Bp. D.
- 15 T. St. Paul, First Hermit, C.
- 16 W. St. Jarcellus, I. P. M.
- 17 Th. St. Anthony, Ab.
- 18 F. St. Peter's Chair at Rome.
- 19 S. SS. Marius and Comp.

20 S. Second after Epiphany.

- 21 M. St. Agnes, V. M.
- SS. Vincent and Anastasius MM.
- 23 W. St. Raymond of Penafort, C.
- 24 Th. St. Timothy, Bp. M
- 25 F. Conversion of St. Paul.
- 26 S. St. Polycarp, Bp. M.

27 S. Septuagesima.

- 28 M. St. Agnes, M. V.
- 29 T. St. Francis de Sales, Bp. D. 30 W. St. Martina, V. M.
- 31 Th. St. Peter Nolasco C. F.

Announcements

JANUARY.

- 1—Circumcision, a holy day.
- 6-Children's Communion Sunday.
 - Holy Name Society; renewal of promises.
- 27-Holy Hour, 7 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

	D.	Н.	Μ.	
Last Quarter	5	6	50	a m.
New Moon	12	5	36	p.m.
First Quarter	10	9	38	a.m.
Full Moon	26	10	14	n m

it moved out in order to allow the water to run through in sufficient quantities to supply the canal. The Company, in order to encourage manufacturing, announced before the completion of the works that the mill or factory which would arst get in running order after the Feeder was finished should have exemption from rent "as long as grass grows and water runs."

THE FIRST MILL.

Oliver Phelps of Dunnville, and Mr. Keefer of Thorold, built each a mill at these points, and hurried their completion in order to avail themselves of the Company's offer. Mr Keefer had his mill built first, but Mr. Phelps had the machinery in his before the roof was on, and had it ready to grind wheat as soon as the water was let into the canal, thus winning the prize before the water had time to reach Keefer's mill at Thorold, which was also ready. The Company, however, gave the privilege of perpetual free water to both mills. Andrew Thompson built a sawmill here about the same time. Logs were brought down the river and cut into lumber by Thompson, and later by Oldfield & Knoxen and Hezekiah Davis. The last named cut a cargo of lumber which L. J. Weatherby took to Buffalo and sold it there. This lumber was then shipped to Chicago and used to erect some of that city's first buildings.

THE POSTMASTERS

About this time the first postmaster came, His name was A. S. St. John. He was succeeded by John Armour, uncle of Thos. Armour. The last named succeeded his uncle in 1864, and resigned in 1916. He still lives here. The post office was first situated where the Pump House is now. The present site was purchased by Thos. Armour. John Armour was made clerk of the Division Court in 1838.

TWO OLD TIMERS.

William Lambier, still living here came to Dunnville in 1830 with his father, Basil Lambier. They came from Montreal. William was ther. three years old. His memory is still very good, and his earliest recollecGarage Phone 54



Res. Phone 21

DURABILITY, SERVICE AND UPKEEP

are what make the "Ford" car so popular and sales greater than ever before. The lasting qualities and small cost of operation every owner enjoys. The service at all times rendered our patrons of Dunnville and vicinity is unequalled.

SCOTT & EDGECOMBE

HARDWARE

THE PLACE TO BUY AND BUY RIGHT

T. G. SCOTT

Phone 42

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

RESIDENCE PHONE 79Y.

OFFICE PHONE 109.

C. D. TRIMBLE

-AGENT FOR-

COCKSHUTT PLOW COMPANY'S

FARM IMPLEMENTS

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

PENNY BROS.

Wish to announce that although prices have advanced on all lines, both Leather and Rubber, they have a very large stock bought before the recent advance at right prices. Boots, Shoes and Trunks.

Butter and Eggs taken in exchange for goods. Highest cash price paid for Hides, Furs and Skins. 1 F

2 S

.3 S 4 M 5 T 6 W

7 T 8 F. 9 S.

10 S. 11 M 12 T. 13 V

13 W 14 Tl 15 F. 16 S.

17 S. 18 M. 19 T. 20 W.

21 Th 22 F.

23 S. 24 S. 25 M. 26 T.

27|W. 28|T.

3—Ble

Cl 13—As

24—Н

Last Q New M First Q Full M

February

1	F.	Antioch, Bp. M.
2	S.	Purification of our Lady (Car delmas.)
.3	S.	Sexagesima.
5	T.	St. Andrew Corsini, Bp. C. St. Agatha, V. M. St. Titus, Bp. C. St. Dorothy V. M.
8	F.	St. Romauld, Ab. St. John de Matha, C. F. St. Cyril of Alexandria Bp. I
10	S.	Quinquagesima.
12 13 14 15	T. W. Th. F.	Our Lady of Lourdes. Seven Servite Saints, CC. FF. As'n Wednesday. St. Valentine, M. SS. Faustinus and Jovita, MM. St. Juliana, V. M.
17	S.	First in Lent.
$\frac{19}{20}$	T. W.	St. Simeon, Bp. M. St. Gabinus, M. Ember Day. St. Pepin, C.
		Ember Day.—St. Peter's Chai at Antioch.

\mathbb{R}

23 S. Ember Day. Vigil.

St. Nestor, Bp. M.

St. Leander, Bp. M.

24 S. Second in Lent.

25 M. St. Mathias, Ap.

28 T. St. Romanus, Ab.

27 W.

Announcements

FEBRUARY.

3—Blessing of Throats, 11.30 a.m., 3.00 p.m. and 7.00 p.m. Children's Communion Sunday.

13—Ash Wednesday. Mass at 9.30. Benediction at 7.30 p.m.

24—Holy Hour, 7.00 p.m. Lenten De votions, Friday at 7.55 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

						D.	Н.	M.	
Last	Quarte	ľ			i,	4	2	52	a.m.
New	Moon					11	5	5	a m
	Quarte					17	7	57	p.m.
	Moon					25	4		n m

tions of the town is a few houses along the river, and one house where the Bank of Commerce stands.

In 1836 came James McNichol from Donegal, Ireland. His son James was born in Dunnville in 1838, and is still living here, the oldest man born in the town. The late John Ardermy, son of William Arderlay, was the first male child born in Dunnville.

EARLY MILLS AND TAVERNS.

About 1836 Camp & Munson, James R. Benson and Clark Bros. built mills here, or across the river at Haldimand now Byng. In 1833 a German named Deffenbacher built a carding mill, and shortly afterwards (1835) L. J. Weatherby came to Dunnville to work in it, and soon afterwards bought it. Mr. Weatherby enlarged and carried it on for some time. Hezekiah Davis bad a saw and a grist mill on the site of O. E. Willson's mill, and close by there was a dry dock. James Sime settled here in 1835, and George Sime a few years later. John Edgar came the same vear.

Mr. Kennedy opened the tavern in a log building, which he kept while the dam and the Feeder were being built. Shortly after this France Lemieux built a hotel where the Farmers' Hotel is now. Robt. Murdy succeeded him in 1834. In 1836 this hotel was taken over by David Price, who formerly lived at Humberstone and built a stone hotel there, doing the stone work himself, as he was a stone mason by trade. His son David, so well known to the present generation. eventually succeeded him. the last named, also called David, succeeded to the business, and built the present building; and now his widow, Mrs. David Price with her son James as manager, is still carrying on this business that has been in the family so For names of other hotels look under heading of "The First Street.'

The Robt. Murdy spoken of above, was the father of Robt. G. Murdy of Dunnville. He ran the first packet boat on the Feeder, and in 1846, he took charge of the toll bridge at the entrance to the Feeder. His son Robt. G. succeeded him in 1866, and carried on a lime kiln and stone quarry business at the same time.

Ar. H. L. Billings

Dentist



SCHIER BLOCK

DUNNVILLE

W. M. MCQUILLEN AUCTIONEER

AND VALUATOR

FOR THE COUNTIES OF HALDIMAND, LINCOLN, WELLAND AND WENTWORTH
CHARGES REASONABLE

Telephone 93c

BROAD STREET FAST,

DUNNVILLE

GAS, GASOLINE & KEROSENE BURNING

ENGINES

FAIRBANKS-MORSE, MOGUL AND TITAN LINES ONTARIO AND AYLMER PUMPS, SCALES, SILOS, ETC.

R. H. JONES

PHONE 57 A

DUNNVILLE

FARMERS' HOTEL

Standard)

Rates \$2.00 a Day all regular meals 50 cents each

FIRST-CLASS FEED BARN

in connection, with accommodation in the remodelled barn for 200 horses. REASONABLE RATES.

1 F 2 S 3 S

4 N 5 T 6 V 7 T 8 F 9 S

11 Lv 12 T 13 V 14 T 15 F 16 S

17 S 18 M 19 T

20 V 21 T 22 F 23 S 24 S 25 M 26 T

27 V 28 T 29 F 30 S 31 S

3-29-

New Firs Full

March

	F. S.	First Friday. St. Charles of Flanders, C.
3	S.	Third in Lent.
5 6 7	T. W. Th.	St. Casimir, C. St. Adrian, M. SS. Perpetua and Felicity, MM. St. Thomas Aquinas, C. D. St. John of God, C. St. Frances of Rome, W.
10	S.	Fourth in Lent.
12 13 14 15	T. W. Th. F.	St. Łulogius, M. St. Gregory the Great, P. D. St. Euphrasia, V. St. Matilda, W. St. Longinus, M. St. Abraham, C.
17	S.	Passion Sunday. St. Patrick Bp. C.
19 20 21 22	W. Th. F.	St. Cyril of Jerusalem, Bp. C. St. Joseph, Spouse B. V. M. Patron of the Church. St. Cuthbert, Bp. C. St. Benedict, Ab. F. Seven Sorrows, B. V. M. St. Victorian, M.
24	S.	Palm Sunday.
26 27 28 29 30	T. W. Th. F.	Annunciation—8th April. St. Ludger, Bp. St. John Damascene, C. D. Holy Thursday. Good Friday. Holy Saturday.
31	S.	Easter Sunday.



Announcements

MARCH.

3—Children's Communion Sunday. 29—Way of the Cross, 3 p.m. Lenten Devetions, Friday, 7,30 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

				D.	H.	Μ.	
Last Quarter				5	7	44	p.m.
New Moon				12		52	p.m.
First Quarter				19	8	30	a.m.
Full Moon				27	10	33	a.m.

A HARD TIME WINTER.

One winter, between 1845 and 1850 there came a very great shortage of food, and a committee had to insist on the town baker handing over his supply of flour, which was divided equally among all the people to relieve their needs. Fortunately the river broke up early in the spring, fish became plentiful, and so much distress was removed.

A FISH STORY, ETC.

Just to make the members of the many rod and gun clubs of the town wish they had been in Dunnville sixty years ago, reference is made to the fact that in the spring sturgeon were caught in such numbers that it was no unusual thing to see these fish piled along the river bank like cord wood. Game was very plentiful. Deer were so numerous that they became a nuisance to the farmers, whose wheat fields and young orchards suffered from the visits of these animals. Bears were common, and ducks too numerous to mention. The wood pigeons took hours to pass over the town in their spring and fall flights. Martin Green, a trapper and fisherman, who has lived here since these days, says that one year the black squirrels emigrated from the woods in Dunn, swam down Sulphur Creek and across the river at Dunnville, and then went on east. They never came back. A creek ran down through the property where St. Michael's Church now stands, and then on through F. J. Ramsey's place to the Bank of Commerce corner, emptying at last into the lower river. There are men still here who fished in this stream as far up as the church. It was called Sunfish Creek.

A MEAN MAN.

In the days of Dunnville's infancy there was one mean man who lived in the village. This is what he did on the occasion of his marriage. He offered to the clergyman who married him a string of fish (suckers) as his fee. The domine who was a circuit rider and lived on the Forks Road, took the fish. He fared far better than the writer, also a clergyman, who has had a groom offer him as a fee a fish story about having no funds at all.

CANADIAN BANK OF COMMERCE

Sir Edmund Walker, C.V.O., LL.D., D.C.L., President.

Sir John Aird, General Manager.

H. V. F. Jones, Ass't. Gen'l. Manager.

CAPITAL PAID UP \$15,000,000

RESERVE FUND \$13,500,000

The Farmer who opens a Banking Account and conducts his affairs in a business-like manner is likely to prosper.

Farmers should avail themselves of the and of this Bank in transacting their business. Consult the Manager regarding current accounts, collections and loans.

DUNNVILLE BRANCH

G. E. PARKES

MANAGER

S. H. BRADFORD, B.A., K.C.

ROBERT BRADFORD

BRADFORD & BRADFORD

BARRISTERS, SOLICITORS NOTARIES PUBLIC, ETC

Money to Loan at Lowest Rates of Interest

LOCK BOX 20

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

Residence Phone 91X.

Garage-East of T. H. & B. Depot

HOWARD BARTLETT

-AGENT FOR-

Chebrolet and McLaughlin Motor Cars

AND ALL KINDS OF FARM IMPLEMENTS

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

20 S 21 S 22 N 23 T 24 W 25 T 26 F 27 S 28 S.

30 T

19 F

28-4

Last New First Full

April

	1 M.	Easter	Monday.
--	------	--------	---------

- 2 T. Easter Tuesday. 3 W. St. Richard of Chichester, Bp.
- 4 Th. St. Isidore, Bp. D.
- First Friday. 6 S. St. Celestine.
- 7 S. Low Sunday.
- 8 M. Annunciation, B. V. M. (Trans.)
- 9 T. St. Mary Cleophas.
- 10 W. St. Macarius. 11 T. St. Leo the Great, P. D.
- 12 F St. Sabas, M
- 13 S. St. Hermenegild, M.
- 14 S. Second after Easter.
- 15 M. SS. Basilissa and Anastasia.
- 16 T. St. Benedict Joseph Labre, C.
- 17 W. Solemnity of St. Joseph.
- 18 T. St. Eleutherius, Bp. M.
- St. Leo IX, P. C 19 F 20 S. St. Agnes of Montepulciano, V.
- 21 S. Third after Easter.
- 22 M. SS. Soter and Caius, PP. MM.
- 23 T. St. George, M. 24 W. Octave of St. Joseph.
- 25 Th. St. Mark, Ev.
- 26 F. SS. Cleti and Marcellini. 27 S. St. Zita, V.
- 28 S. Fourth after Easter.
- 29 M. St. Peter, M.
- 30 T. St. Catharine of Siena, V.

${ m Announcements}$

APRIL.

- 7-Children's Communion Sunday.
- 28-Annual meeting of Altar Society after High Mass. Holy Hour.

MOON PHASES.

	D.	H.	М.	
Last Quarter	4	8	33	a.m.
New Moon	10	11	34	p.m.
First Quarter	17	11	8	p.m.
Full Moon	26	3	5	a.m.

STEAMERS OF OTHER DAYS.

Steamers ran from Buffalo to Dunnville and on up the river to Brantford This was after the Feeder was built. These boats carried passengers, had regular ports along the river, passed through locks at Indiana, York, Caledonia and near Brantford. The names of some of these were the Indian Chief which was the first boat on the river, the Swallow, Queen, Caroline Messmore, Brantford, Oxford and Caledonia. Captain Daniel Mc-Swain also ran a packet boat between Buffalo and Brantford. A tow path ran along the other side of the rive. to the Telephone City. There was no railway connection to Brantford then

It was in 1833 that the Grand River Navigation Co. improved navigation along the river from Indiana to Brantford. In 1871, the Haldimand Naviga-tion Co. bought out their rights and property.

At this period and later the river gave more or less trouble every spring. and many moved away because of these freshets. 1869 was the year of the most serious flood.

THE FIRST STREET.

The first street ran along the river from the Queen's Hotel corner west. The buildings on the south side were built from the river bank out over the stream. The business of the town was carried on here, and these are the names of some of the business and professional men who earned their living on this street then and until it was eventually deserted for the present business section: A. S. St. John, Andrew Thompson, John Oldfield, John Armour, Merrigold & Stewart, John Minor, Henry Penny, Thos. Armour, J. Stevenson, Wm. Fleming, Montague & Darling, Alex. and Hugh Robb, R. Chambers, M. Gash, C. Osborne, H. Johnson, Robt. McNeill, Thos. Boyle, J Gibson, J. Hirsch, McMullen Bros., E. Barker, Wm. Sache, R. Richardson, Lawson Bros., Wm. Scholfield, Jas. Scholfield, A. McNeill, R. May Wm. Bell and Cornelius Perry.

The hotels that withstood the breezes that blew along tne front were: Commercial House, North American, Thomas Wiggens, prop; Dunnville House, John Ricker, prop.;

The Union Bank of Canada

(ESTABLISHED 1867)

KEEP THE FAMILY SAVINGS IN A JOINT ACCOUNT

in the names of two or more members—Husband and Wife, Brother and Sister, or Father and Son. It is an all-round convenience, as either can deposit or withdraw money, and in case of death the balance goes to the survivor without any formalities, forming an immediate source of ready money.

DUNNVILLE BRANCH
A. C. MCBRIDE - MANAGER

Dominion Natural Gas Co



PRODUCERS AND DISTRIBUTORS OF

NATURAL GAS

30|T 31|F

29 V

9— 17— 30—

Last New First Full

C.

May

2 T. 3 F.	SS. Philip and James, App. St. Athanasius, Bp. D. First Friday. Finding of the Holy Cross. St. Monica, W.
5 S.	Fifth after Easter.
7 T. 8 W. 9 T.	Rogation Day. Ascension—Holy Day. St. Antoninus, Bp. C.
12 S.	Within Octave.
14 T.	St. John, Bp. C. St. Pachomius, Ab. St. John Bantist de la Salle C

10	W.	St.	John Bap	tist de	la	Salle
16	T.	St.	Ubaldus,	Bp. C.		
17	F.	St.	Paschalis	Bab.	C.	
40	10%	CYL	**	**	**	

18 S.	St. Venan	tius, M.	Fast	Day
19 S.	Pentecost	Sunday	/.	
	and the second s			and the same

20 M.	rentecost Monday.
21 T.	Pentecost Tuesday.
22 W.	Ember Day.
23 T.	St. John Baptist de Rossi

23 T.	St. Joh	n Baptist	de	Rossi
24 F.	Ember	Day.		
25 8	Emher	Day		

20	0.	по	y irii	iity	*
27	M.	St.	John,	P.	M.
0.0	PRY.	CAL		42-	- 73

28 T.	St. Augustine,	Bp.	C.	Apostle	of
	Fngland.				
no less	O				

	T. II PICCELL	1.5.6 4			
29 W.	St. Mary	Magdalene	de	Pazzi,	V.
O O PER					

30 T. Corpus Christi. 31 F. St. Angela Merici V.



Announcements

MAY.

5—Children's Communion Sunday, 9—Ascension Thursday, a holy day, 17—Forty Hours commences, 30—Corpus Christi,

MOON PHASES.

						D.	H.	M.	
Last	Quarter					3	5	26	p.m.
New	Moon .					10	8	1	a.m.
First	Quarte	1.				17	3	14	p.m.
Full	Moon .		į.	į.		25	5	32	p.m.

Arderlay House, Wm. Arderlay, prop.; McKeever House, John McKeever, prop.; Laverne House, Mr. Laverne, prop.

Other men in business off this street in these early times and later were: A. A. Brownson, Jos. Brown, Samuel Amsden, Hugh Asher, John Woodbury, Geo. and Thos. Carlisle, Walter Brown, George Sime, James Sime, A. T. Macartney, John Johnson, Henry Johnson. Reid & Diltz, Hyatt & Miller, D. Mitchell, Hanlon & Henry, K. C. Kirkpatrick S. Cornick, Thos. Woodside, J. Edgar, Jas. and D. McIndoe, Jas. Norris, D. Smith, Wm. G. Scott, Wm. Carr, John Parry, Julius Moblo, Jas. Adams, Angus Livingstone, John Flower. Joe Montague ran a blacksmith shop where the Customs House now stands. Dr. Allen and his son Dr. Allen, Dr. Jarron, Dr. Wilson, Couse, Dr. McLaughlin and later Dr. Hopkins, father of the present Dr. Hopkins, and Dr. McCallum, were the medical men. The hotels in this district were: McKee House, Queen's, Victoria, Mansion and Arderlay House, and Royal.

The fire chiefs were John Oldfield and R. Brownson; the village clerk, John Martin. At different times the town foremen were: Thos. Carroll, John Carson and Christie Wilson. Mat. Culleton was night watchman.

THE SCHOOLS.

From all accounts those who were eligible for school in Dunnville in the days of long ago had their troubles, as there were many private schools for them, and a small public school steod at Dr. Hopkins' corner. John Armour taught in this school; also a Mr. Atkinson and Rev. E. H. Dewart, later editor of the Christian Guardian, and Michael Scott and Ed. Henry, This building was given up when the present site was taken over for a new school in 1855. Fergus Scholfield still living here, and born on the site of the Monarch Knitting Co., is the authority for the statement that the childrea were highly indignant when told where the new school was to be built. They felt it was a great hardship to be asked to walk away out to the woods to the school—just three blocks from the river.

130 Branches

Established 1872

BANK OF HAMILTON

Capital Authorized \$5,000,000 Reserve Fund Total Assets Capital paid up \$3,000,000 \$ 3,509,556.57 \$60,000,000

DIRECTORS.

Sir John S. Hendrie, K.C.M.G., President. Cyrus A. Birge, Vice-President. Robt, Hobson

C. C. Dalton. I. Pitblado, K.C. Robt, Hobson J. Turnbull. J. P. Bell, General Manager. W. E. Phin. W. A Wood.

A GENERAL BANKING BUSINESS CONDUCTED.

Special attention given to farmers' business. Loans made on all suitable securities. Farmers' sale notes discounted at lowest rates. All note forms supplied free of charge.

SAVINGS BANKS.

Sums of \$1.00 and upwards received and interest allowed at highest current rate. Accounts may be opened in the name of two or more parties, any one of whom can withdraw when required.

Collections effected cheaply and promptly. We solicit the business of individuals, firm; and corporations.

DUNNVILLE BRANCH

A. W. HAUN, Manager.

RYMAL W. SMITH

-DEALER IN-

GRAIN AND SEED FLOUR AND FEED

HIGHEST MARKET PRICES PAID FOR ALL KINDS OF
GRAM AND SEEDS.

-AGENT FOR-

MONARCH ENGINES AND EMPIRE CREAM SEPARATORS

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO

21 F

22 S 23 S 24 M 25 T 26 V 27 T 28 F

29 S

2-7-

Last New Firs Full

June

	1 S.	St. Caprasius, Ab.
	2 S.	Second after Pentecost.
	4 T. 5 W	St. Clotilda, W. St. Francis Caracciolo, C. F. St. Boniface, Bp. M. St. Norbert, Bp. C. F. — St.
	7 F.	Jesus.
	8 S.	
	9 S.	Third after Pentecost.
1 1 1 1	2 W	St. Barnabas, Ap. St. Jehn of St. Facundus, C. St. Anthony of Padua, C. St. Basil, Bp. D.
1	6 S.	Fourth after Pentecost.
1 2 2	8 T. 9 W	(Patron of Youth.)
2	3 S.	Fifth after Pentecost.
2 2 2 2	4 M. 5 T. 6 W 7 T. 8 F. 9 S.	St. William, Ab. SS. John and Paul, MM. St. Ladislaus, K. M.



30 S. Sixth after Pentecost.

Announcements

JUNE.

2—Children's Communion Sunday. 7—Sacred Heart.

MOON PHASES.

								D.	H.	М.	
Last	Quarte	er						1	11	20	p.m.
New	Moon							8	5	3	p.m.
First	Quart	e	7*					16	8	12	a.m.
Full	Moon			*		,		24	5	38	a.m.

These are some of the teachers who taught in this school until 1878: N. L. Holmes, Miss Jane Miller, Miss Jenina Miller, Messrs. LaMont, Minor, C. E. S. Black, T. Q. Hamilton, Thos. Hammond, A. E. Osborne.

The High School was established in 1868 with the following trustees: Judge Upper, T. L. M. Tipton, W. N. Braund, John Parry, Charles Stevens and Hugh Asher. The first building used was owned and occupied by N. J. Root, later the old Weslevan Church was occupied. In 1885 the old High School on Alder St. was built. The principals to 1878: Messrs. Colter, Young, Hume and Harrison.

THE CHURCHES.

In the early days the Methodists worshipped in the old public school that stood at Dr. Hopkins' corner, and also in a room over W. R. Jackson's store. About 1852 the Wesleyan Methodists built on the present public school corner. This building was later moved to Lock St., opposite Dr. Walker's. About sixty years ago the Episcopal Methodists built on Pine St., the building now occupied by Geo. windecker as a mill. The New Connection Church on the corner of Maple and Alder Sts., was built by Rev. Mr. DeMill sometime in the sixties. In 1874, shortly after some different denominations of Methodists in Canada had formed a union, the members of the two other Methodist Churches here, worshipped at the New Connection Church, and sold their buildings. The names of some of the early ministers were: Rev. Messrs. Gundy, DeMill, Winslow, Wilson, Brown and Williams.

In 1849, Rev. Geo. Cheyne enrolled 25 members of the Knox Presbyterian Church in Dunnville. Before this, however, in 1845, a brick church had been built. In that year these gentlemen were members of a committee connected with it: Andrew Thompson, John Armour, Wm. Chalmers, Jas. Sime, John A. Minor, and Dr. Jarron. The first pastor was Rev. W. Porterfield, who came in 1852, and in this year Salmon Minor, John Bowman and Wm. Scott were ordained elders. Shortly previous to this some members had withdrawn and formed a connection with the United Presbyterian Church.

The Wm. Shirton Co. Ltd

-DEALERS IN-

LUMBER, LATH, SHINGLES, FENCE POSTS, ETC. MANUFACTURERS OF PLANING MILL PRODUCTS.

SPECIAL TO FARMERS-Silo Material Supplied at Lowest Prices.

DUNNVILLE

PORT COLBORNE

Telephone 317.

Telephone 163. P. O. Box 73.

BRETT & MASSON

-DEALERS IN-

FURNITURE, PICTURES & PHONOGRAPHS

The Largest Stock and Lowest Prices in the County of Haldimand.

CALL AND SEE THEM BEFORE BUYING

ODDFELLOWS BLOCK

DUNNVILLE

Mac's Billiard Parlors

Choicest Cigars and Tobaccos, Etc. Shoe Shine Parlor in Connection.

J. A. AlcKeeber

Aroprietor

PHONE 140.

NIAGARA STREET

EMERSON CULP

Dealer in All Kinds of

FRESH AND SALT WATER FISH, OYSTERS, CLAMS, POULTRY.
SMOKED FISH A SPECIALTY
ALL KINDS OF GROCERIES ON HAND

TERMS CASH

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

22 S 23 S 24 N 25 T 26 V 27 T 28 F 29 S

30 S.

19 1

20 T 21 F

2-

Last New First Full

June

1 S. St. Caprasius,	Ab.	
---------------------	-----	--

2 S. Second after Pentecost.

3 M. St. Clotilda, W.

St. Francis Caracciolo, C. F.

St. Boniface, Bp. M.

6 Th. St. Norbert, Bp. C. F.

Claude, C First Friday. Sacred Heart of Jesus.

8 S. St. Meuard, C.

9 S. Third after Pentecost.

10 M. St. Margaret, W

St. Barnabas, Ap.

12 W. St. John of St. Facundus, C.

13 Th. St. Anthony of Padua, C.

14 F. St. Basil, Bp. D.

15 S. St. Bernard of Menthon, C.

16 S. Fourth after Pentecost.

17 M. St. Aviatus, Ab.

SS. Mark and Marcellian, MM.

19 W St. Juliana Falconieri, V.

20 Th. St. Silverius, P. M. 21 F. St. Aloysius Gonzaga, S.J., C. (Patron of Youth.)

22 S. St. Paulinus, Bp. C.-Vigil.

23 S. Fifth after Pentecost.

24 M. Nativity of St. John the Baptist,

25 T. St. William, Ab.

26 W. SS. John and Paul, MM.

St. Ladislaus, K. M.

Vigil-St. Leo II, P. C. 28 F.

29 S. SS, Peter and Paul, App.

30 S. Sixth after Pentecost.



Announcements

JUNE.

2-Children's Communion Sunday.

7-Sacred Heart.

MOON PHASES.

						D.	H.	М.	
Last	Quarte	er				1	11	20	p.m.
	Moon						5	3	p.m.
	Quart							12	a.m.
Full	Moon					24	5	38	a.m.

These are some of the teachers who taught in this school until 1878: N. L. Holmes, Miss Jane Miller, Miss Jenina Miller, Messrs. LaMont, Minor, C. E. S. Black, T. Q. Hamilton, Thos. Hammond, A. E. Osborne.

The High School was established in 1868 with the following trustees: Judge Upper, T. L. M. Tipton, W. N. Braund, John Parry, Charles Stevens and Hugh Asher. The first building used was owned and occupied by N. J. Root, later the old Weslevan Church was occupied. In 1885 the old High School on Alder St. was built. The principals to 1878: Messrs. Colter, Young, Hume and Harrison.

THE CHURCHES.

In the early days the Methodists worshipped in the old public school that stood at Dr. Hopkins' corner, and also in a room over W. R. Jackson's store. About 1852 the Wesleyan Methodists built on the present public school corner. This building was later moved to Lock St., opposite Dr. Walker's. About sixty years ago the Episcopal Methodists built on Pine St., the building now occupied by Geo. windecker as a mill. The New Connection Church on the corner of Maple and Alder Sts., was built by Rev. Mr. DeMill sometime in the sixties. In 1874, shortly after some different denominations of Methodists in Canada had formed a union, the members of the two other Methodist Churches here, worshipped at the New Connection Church, and sold their buildings. The names of some of the early ministers were: Rev. Messrs. Gundy, DeMill, Winslow, Wilson, Brown and Williams.

In 1849, Rev. Geo. Cheyne enrolled 25 members of the Knox Presbyterian Church in Dunnville. Before this, however, in 1845, a brick church had been built. In that year these gentlemen were members of a committee connected with it: Andrew Thompson, John Armour, Wm. Chalmers, Jas. Sime, John A. Minor, and Dr. Jarron. The first pastor was Rev. W. Porterfield, who came in 1852, and in this year Salmon Minor, John Bowman and Wm. Scott were ordained elders. Shortly previous to this some members had withdrawn and formed a connection with the United Presbyterian Church.

The Wm. Shirton Co. Ltd

-DEALERS IN-

LUMBER, LATH, SHINGLES, FENCE POSTS, ETC. MANUFACTURERS OF PLANING MILL PRODUCTS.

SPECIAL TO FARMERS—Silo Material Supplied at Lowest Prices.

DUNNVILLE

PORT COLBORNE

Telephone 163. P. O. Box 73.

Telephone 317.

пссопссопс

BRETT & MASSON

-DEALERS IN-

FURNITURE, PICTURES & PHONOGRAPHS

The Largest Stock and Lowest Prices in the County of Haldimand.

CALL AND SEE THEM BEFORE BUYING

ODDFELLOWS BLOCK

DUNNVILLE

пс

Mac's Billiard Harlors

Choicest Cigars and Tobaccos, Etc. Shoe Shine Parlor in Connection.

J. H. Ackeeber

Proprietor

PHONE 140.

NIAGARA STREET

EMERSON CULF

Dealer in All Kinds of

FRESH AND SALT WATER FISH, OYSTERS, CLAMS, POULTRY.
SMOKED FISH A SPECIALTY
ALL KINDS OF GROCERIES ON HAND

TERMS CASH

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

22 1

24 V 25 T

27 S 28 S 29 A 30 T 31 V

7-28-

New First Full Last

Last

July

1 M. Most Precious Blood. Visitation of B.V.M. 3 W. St. Heliodorus, M. 4 Th. St. Bertha, W 5 F. First Friday. 6 S. St. Goar, C. 7 S. Seventh after Pentecost. 9 M. St. Elizabeth of Portugal, W. 9 T. St. Veronica, V. 10 W. Seven Holy Brothers and Comp. .. M. 11 Th. St. Pius I, P. M. 12 F. St. John Gaulbert, Ab. 13 S. St. Anacletus, P. M. 14 S. Eighth after Penteccst. 15 M. St. Henry, C. 16 T. Our Lady of Mt. Carmel. 17 W. St. Alexius, C. 18 Th. St. Camillus de Lellis, C. F. (Patron of Hospitals.) 19 F. St. Vincent de Paul, C. F. (Patron of Charities.) 20 S. St. Jerome Emiliani, C. F. 21 S. Ninth after Pentecost. 22 M. St. Mary Magdalene. St. Apollinaris, Bp. M. 24 W. Vigʻl—St. Christina, V. M. 25 Th. St. James, Ap.-St Christopher, 26 F. St. Ann. Mother of B.V.M. 27 S. St. Pantaleon, M. 28 S. Tenth after Pentecost. 29 M. St. Martha, V. 30 T. SS. Abdon and Sennen, MM.



31 W. St Innatius Loyola, S.J., C.F.

Announcements

JULY.

7—Children's Communion Sunday.. 28—Holy Hour, 7 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

	D. J	I. M.	
Last Quarter	1	3 43	a.m.
New Moon	8	3 22	a.m.
First Quarter	16	1 25	a.m.
Full Moon	23	3 35	p.m.
Last Quarter	30	8 14	a,m

Rev. Robt. Jamieson succeeded Rev. Mr. Porterfield and then came Rev. John Rennie. Rev. Robt. Fleming came in 1868, remaining just a short time. Until 1876 there was no regular pastor, when came Rev. Geo. A. Yeomans who was here in 1878. The present building was erected in 1906.

An Anglican clergyman, the Rev. Mr. Clark, a missionary, visited the Anglicans who lived here in the very early days. After this the Rev. Mr. Hill made occasional visits from York. In 1841 Rev. C. B. Gribble came, and in 1843 Rev. Dr. Townley had charge of the churches at Port Maitland, South Cayuga and Dunnville. Then the following clergymen succeeded to the charge in this order down to 1878: Rev. John Flood, Rev. Noah Disbro and Rev. Percy Smith. the last to hold the triple charge. The old church stood back on the lot where stands the present building erected in 1886. A graveyard surrounded the old church.

In the year 1878 the Baptist Church was not organized here. Meetings were held in the old church opposite Dr. Walker's, on Lock St., in 1887, and in the following year the church was organized by the Rev. Mr. Pugsley, and the present church was built in 1889. Outside of Dunnville, however, there were churches of this denomination with many members in Sherbrooke and Canboro that dated back to early times.

Father McIntosh is probably the first priest to say Mass in Dunnville. This was in 1848, and the place was a room in Mrs. McKeever's hotel. Later Mass was said in a building owned by John Timmon₃ near the G.T.R. station; next at Thos. Carroll's house, then at Jasper Murphy's and the Amsden and the Boswell halls. Dean Grattan, Fathers Conway and Fitzgerald came after Father AcIntosh. About 1858, or 1860, Father McNulty of Caledonia, visited the town. Shortly after a frame church was built where the parish house now stands, was moved later to the present site and was moved back again in 1886 to allow the present church to be erected. From the year 1858, or 1860, Frs. McNulty, M. Cleary Doherty, Maddigan and Kelly (now of St. Patrick's, Hamilton), pastors of

Capital Trust Corporation

Limited

Authorized Capital, \$2,000,000

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

President: M. J. O'Brien, Renfrew.

Vice-Presidents: Hon. S. N. Parent, Ottawa; J. J. Lyons, Ottawa; R. P. Gough, Toronto; A. E. Corrigan, Ottawa.

A. E. Provost, Ottawa.

Hon. R. G. Beazley, Halifax.

E. Fabre Surveyor, K.C., Montreal
Hugh Doheny, Montreal.

E. W. Tobin, Bromptonville.
Arthur Ferland, Haileybury.

J. B. Duford, Ottawa.
Edward Cass, Winnipeg.

T. P. Phelan, Toronto.

J. F. Brown, Toronto.

W. H. McAuliffe, Ottawa.

W. H. McAuliffe, Ottawa.

W. J. Poupore, ev. M.P. Montreal.

Col. D. R. Street, Ottawa.

P. V. Byrnes, Hamilton.

Managing Director: B. G. Connolly, Assistant Manager: E. T. B. Pennefather.

OFFICES: 10 METCALFE STREET, OTTAWA, ONT.

OUR CHIEF WORK

Is in acting as Executor under Wills and as Administrator of

25

Fir Ful

- 1. The fees allowed to the Trust Company are the same as to a private Executor.
- 2. The Trust Company is experienced in managing estates and in making proper investments.
- 3. The Service of the Trust Company is continuous and there is no interruption as in the case of a private executor who may be removed by death or who may make unwise investments.
- 4. A husband, wife, son or daughter may be appointed jointly with the Trust Company, when this is desirable, without extra cost,
- 5. The Local Solicitor, who is accustomed to attend to the affairs of the estate, is retained to continue the necessary legal work

Write for our booklet "The Will That Really Provides," and for any other information desired to

Capital Trust Corporation

August

1	Th.	St. Peter in Chains.
2	F.	First Friday.
3	S.	Finding of St. Stephen's Relics.
4	S.	Eleventh after Pentecost.
5	М.	Our Lady of the Snow.
	T.	Transfiguration of our Lord.
	W.	St. Cajetan, C. F.
		SS. Cyriacus and Comp. MM.
	F.	Vigil—St. Romanus, M.
	S.	St. Lawrence, M.
11	S.	Twelfth after Pentecost.
	М.	St. Clare, V.
13	T.	St. John Berchmans, S. J., C.
		Patron of Altar Boys.
	W.	
	T.	Assumption of the B. V. M.
	F. S.	St. Joachim, Father of B.V.M. St. Hyacinth, C.
	S.	Thirteenth after Pentecost.
	М.	St. Louis, Bp. C.
	Т.	St. Bernard, Ab. D.
21	W.	St. Jane Frances de Chantal, W. F.
22	T.	SS. Timothy and Comp. MM.
25	F.	Vigil-St. Philip Beniti, C.
24	S.	St. Bartholomew, Ap.
25	S.	Fourteenth after Pentecost.
	М.	St. Zephyrinus, P. M.
	T.	St. Joseph Calasanctius, C. F.
		St. Augustine, Bp. D.
29	T.	Beheading of St. John the Bap-
20	173	tist.
		St. Rose of Lima, V.



31 S. St. Raymond Nonnatus, C.

Announcements

AUGUST.

4—Children's Communion Sunday. 25—Holy Hour, 7 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

	D.	H.	М.
New Moon		6 3	30 p.m.
First Quarter		14 6	16 p.m.
Full Moon		22 0	2 a.m.
Last Quanton		90 9	97 2 20

Caledonia, came at intervals to minister to the spiritual needs of the Catholics until a parish was established in 1885 with a resident priest.

Father Lee came to Stromness in 1841, and died there a short time after. He quelled the Broad Creek War.

THE LEGISLATORS.

The names of the legislators for Haldimand and Monck down to 1878 are: Haldimand-Capt, John Brant in 1832, William H. Merritt in 1837, David Thompson, William Lyon Mackenzie, who defeated Geo. Brown and R. Mc-Kinnon. Michael Harcourt, and in 1862 David Thompson. David Thompson was the representative at Ottawa from 1867 to 1878. Dr. Baxter represented Haldimand in the Ontario Assembly from 1867 to 1878. The County of Monck was represented in the House of Commons by Lauchlin Mc-Callum in 1867, James D. Edgar of Toronto in 1872, and Lauchlin McCallum was elected again in 1874 and 1878. The same county was represented in the Ontario Assembly by Geo. Secord in 1867, Lauchlin McCal lum in 1871, and Dr. H. R. Haney from 1872 to 1878. Then Richard Harcourt

THE FOURTH ESTATE.

The first paper in Dunnville was "The Independent," the first number of which was published at Cayuga by Dr. Harrison and T. L. M. Tipton, recently deceased. This was in 1851. L. J. Weatherby and A. Brownson bought it in 1852. Hanlon & Henry took it over in 1859. It was Reform in politics until this year, when it became Conservative, supporting Samuel Amsden against William Lyon Mckenzie. A short time after it discontinued publication. Later Thos. Messenger bought the press and type and started "The Luminary." In 1871, C. E. S. Black bought this paper, and continued it under the name of "The Gazette." "The Haldimand Tribune" was published here by L. J. and W. L. Weatherby. In 1873 came "The Reform Press." L. J. Weatherby took charge of it, C. W. Colter was first editor, and later T. L. M. Tipton edited it. The Dunnville Chronicle was established in 1896

GRANITE WARE

Good Quality - Reasonable Prices



While Graniteware has been one of the later lines added to our business, we have established a large trade in this line, chiefly because we keep the assortment, the quality and low prices. Watch for the Special Bargains we offer in our weekly advertisements.

CONGDON & MARSHALL

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

19

21

29 -

Firs Full

SAVE TIME AND WORRY BY TRADING AT

W. J. Griffith's Big Store

Telephone 41

Everything New and Up-to-Date in

STAPLE AND FANCY DRY GOODS
CLOTHING
HOUSE FURNISHINGS
CARPETS AND LINOLEUMS
WALL PAPER
LADIES' READY-TO-WEAR GARMENTS
MEN'S FURNISHINGS

Take advantage of my Big Stock, bought at prices that will save you money.

W. J. GRIFFITH

DUNNVILLE

September

1	S.	Fifteenth after Pentecost.
2	М.	St. Stephen, K. C.
	T.	St. Seraphia, V. M.
4	W.	
5	T.	St. Lawrence Justinian, Bp. C.
	F.	First Friday.
7	S.	St. Regina, V. M.
8	S.	Sixteenth after Pentecost-Nat-
9	M.	St. Peter Claver, S.J., C.
10	T.	St. Nicholas of Tolentino, C.
11	W.	SS. Protus and Hyacinth, MM.
12	T.	The Holy Name of Mary.
	F.	
14	S.	Exaltation of the Holy Cross.
		Seventeenth after Pentecost.
16	М.	SS. Cornelius, P. and Cyprian, B.
17	T.	Stigmata of St. Francis of Assisi,
18	W.	Ember Day.
	T.	
20	F.	Ember Cay. — SS. Eustachius and Comp. MM.
21	S.	Ember Day-St. Matthew, Ap.
22	S.	Eighteenth after Pentecost.
	М.	St. Linus, P.M.
	T.	Our Lady of Ransom.
	W.	
26	T.	SS. Cyprian and Justina, MM.
27	F.	SS. Cosmas and Damian, MM.
28	S.	St. Wenceslaus, K. M.
		Nineteenth after Pentecost — Dedication of St. Michael, Archangel.
20	M.	St. Jerome, C.D.

平

Announcements

SEPTEMBER.

1—Children's Communion Sunday. 29—Feast of the Patron of the Parish.

MOON PHASES.

						D.	H.	Μ.	
New	Moon					5	5	44	a m.
First	Quarter		,			13	10	2	a.m.
Full	Moon					20	8	1	a m
Last	Quarter					26	1.1	39	n m

A POPULAR MANLY ART.

In these days the manly art of self defence was not neglected. There were many Jess Willards, who did not wait for a ring to perform in and were not concerned about a purse. They just naturally engaged in this diversion to work off an exuberance of spirits. Anyway it can be truthfully said that the spirits had a lot to do with it. These were the days of good spirits too, and the times were indeed happy. No uplift fads then. Germs there were none, and whoever heard of microbes? They had not yet come to town. There were no operations for appendicitis. No need of such, for the panacea for all ill; was quinine, very sparingly placed in a most liberal supply of (Fill in the blank yourself). The article is now taboo since Ottawa followed the example of Toronto.

Between 1858 and 1863 there was an excellent dramatic club here with a Mr. and Mrs. Mason as instructors.

DUNNVILLE IN 1878.

The "Historical Atlas" has also the following to say about Dunnville in the year 1878:

"To the almost unlimited water power obtainable, Dunnville owes much of its early prosperity and subsequent growth. The shipping facilities furnished by the canal, and the excellent harbor at Fort Maitland, have made it the market where nearly all the surplus grain of the surrounding townships is handled, and the building of the Buffalo & Goderich Railway has given Dunnville increased advantages as a business centre.

enterprise of the business men of the village, it has maintained a degree of prosperity, even in the last few years of depression, equalled by very few communities of its population in Ontario. Its population is now about two thousand and is increasing. It is well built, mostly with brick, and some of

"Owing to these advantages, and the

the stores are large and substantial structures, notably those erected by the late Samuel Amsden, who was at one time an enterprising and wealthy business man. He built the store now occupie by F. J. Ramsey, known as

D. P. FRY

FURNITURE DEALER & FUNERAL DIRECTOR

THE LEADING UNDERTAKER NEW MOTOR HEARSE

DUNNVILLE - - ONTARIO

W. E. SPENCE

RESTAURANT

TABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR LADIES

GRAND PACIFIC BLOCK,

NEILSON'S ICE CREAM OPEN BOTH DAY AND NIGHT DUNNVILLE, ONT.

W. R. JACKSON

STAPLE & FANCY DRY GOODS

BEST SPECIAL MEASURE SUITS FOR MEN SPECIALIST IN DRESS GOODS AND LINENS

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO

G. F. WINDECKER FLOUR AND FEED

Special Attention Given to

SEED CLEANING AND CHOPPING

PINE STREET .

- DUNNVILLE, ONT.

September

1	S.	Fifteenth after Pentecost.
2	М.	St. Stephen, K. C.
3	T.	St. Seraphia, V. M.
4	W.	
5	T.	St. Lawrence Justinian, Bp. C.
	F.	First Friday.
7	S.	St. Regina, V. M.
8	S.	Sixteenth after Pentecost—Nat- ivity of B.V.M.
9	M.	St. Peter Claver, S.J., C.
10	T.	St. Nicholas of Tolentino, C.
11	W.	SS. Protus and Hyacinth, MM.
12	T.	The Holy Name of Mary.
13	F.	St. Maurilius, Bp. C.
14	S.	Exaltation of the Holy Cross.
15	S.	Seventeenth after Pentecost.
16	M.	SS. Cornelius, P. and Cyprian, B.
17	Т.	Stigmata of St. Francis of Assisi.
18	W.	Ember Day.
19	T.	SS. Januarius and Comp. MM.
20	F.	Ember Cay. — SS. Eustachius and Comp. MM.
21	S.	
22	S.	Eighteenth after Pentecost.
23	М.	
	T.	Our Lady of Ransom.
25	W.	
26	T.	SS. Cyprian and Justina, MM
27	F.	SS. Cosmas and Damian, MM.
28	S.	St. Wenceslaus, K. M.
		Nineteenth after Pentecost -
		Dedication of St. Michael, Archangel
30	M	St. Jerome, C.D.
.,,,	****	ou octome, C.D.

H

Announcements

SEPTEMBER.

1—Children's Communion Sunday. 29—Feast of the Patron of the Parish.

MOON PHASES.

							D.	H.	M.	
New	Moon	,		,			ã	5	44	a m.
First	Quarter						13	10	2	a.m.
Full	Moon						20	- 8	1	a m
Last	Quarter				,		26	11	39	p.m.

A POPULAR MANLY ART.

In these days the manly art of self defence was not neglected. There were many Jess Willards, who did not wait for a ring to perform in and were not concerned about a purse. They just naturally engaged in this diversion to work off an exuberance of spirits. Anyway it can be truthfully said that the spirits had a lot to do with it. These were the days of good spirits too, and the times were indeed happy. No uplift fads then. Germs there were none, and whoever heard of microbes? They had not yet come to town. There were no operations for appendicitis. No need of such, for the panacea for all ills was quinine, very sparingly placed in a most liberal supply of (Fill in the blank yourself). The article is now taboo since Ottawa followed the example of Toronto.

Between 1858 and 1863 there was an excellent dramatic club here with a Mr. and Mrs. Mason as instructors.

DUNNVILLE IN 1878.

The "Historical Atlas" has also the following to say about Dunnville in the year 1878:

"To the almost unlimited water power obtainable, Dunnville owes much of its early prosperity and subsequent growth. The shipping facilities furnished by the canal, and the excellent harbor at Fort Maitland, have made it the market where nearly all the surplus grain of the surrounding townships is handled, and the building of the Buffalo & Goderich Railway has given Dunnville increased advantages as a business centre.

"Owing to these advantages, and the enterprise of the business men of the village, it has maintained a degree of prosperity, even in the last few years of depression, equalled by very few communities of its population in Ontario. Its population is now about two thousand and is increasing. It is well built, mostly with brick, and some of the stores are large and substantial structures, notably those erected by the late Samuel Amsden, who was at one time an enterprising and wealthy business man. He built the store now occupie by F. J. Ramsey, known as

D. P. FRY

FURNITURE DEALER & FUNERAL DIRECTOR

THE LEADING UNDERTAKER NEW MOTOR HEARSE

DUNNVILLE - - ONTARIO

W. E. SPENCE

RESTAURANT

TABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR LADIES

GRAND PACIFIC BLOCK,

NEILSON'S ICE CREAM OPEN BOTH DAY AND NIGHT DUNNVILLE, ONT.

W. R. JACKSON

-EEST VALUES IN-

STAPLE & FANCY DRY GOODS

BEST SPECIAL MEASURE SUITS FOR MEN SPECIALIST IN DRESS GOODS AND LINENS

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO

G. F. WINDECKER FLOUR AND FEED

Special Attention Given to

SEED CLEANING AND CHOPPING

PINE STREET

CUNNVILLE, ONT.

2113

Sun

Full

October

1 T. St. Remigius, Bp. C									
	(3n	\mathbf{R}	118	igi	em	1 1	T S	1

- 2 W. Holy Guardian Angels
- 3 T. St. Gerard, Ab.
- 4 F. First Friday. - St. Francis of Ass'si, C. F.
- SS. Placidus and Comp. MM.

Twentieth after Pentecost.

- 7 M. Most Holy Rosary,
- St. Bridget of Sweden, W.
- 9 W. SS. Denis and Comp. MM.
- 10 T. St. Francis Borgia, S.J., C.
- St. Gummar, C. 11 F.
- St. Wilfrid, Bp. C. 12 S.

13 S. Twenty-first after Pentecost.

- 14 M. St. Callistus, P. M. 15 T. St. Teresa, V.
- 16 W. St. Gall, Ab.
- 17 T. St. Hedwiges, Wid. B!. Margaret Mary Alacoque, V.
- 18 F. St. Luke, Evangelist.
- St. Peter of Alcantara C. 19 S.

20 S. Twe ty-second after Pentecost,

- 211M. St. Hilarion, Ab. 22 T. St. Mary Salome.
- 23 W. St. Verus, Bp. C.
- 24 T. St. Paphae!, Archangel.
- 25 F. SS. Chrysanthus and Daria, MM
- St. Evaristus, P. M. 26 S.

Twerty-third after Pentecost.

- 28 M. SS. Simon and Jude, app.
- St. Narcissus, Bp. C
- 30 W. St. Alphonsus Rodriguez, S. J.,
- 31 T. Vigil-Fast Day-St. Quinctinus, M.

Announcements

OCTOBER.

6-Children's Communion Day.

27-Holy Hour, 7 p.m.

October devotions will take place Sundays at 7 p.m. and week days, during the daily lass.

MOON PHASES.

		D.	H.	M.	
New	Moon	 4	10	5	p.m.
First	Quarter	 13	0	0	a.m.
Full	Moon	 19	4	35	p.m.
	Quarter				

the Boswell Hall Store, and another now occupied as a hotel, the "Queen's. Dunnville has a large number of wellstocked stores, and a few fairly prosperous manufacturing establishments. Two weekly papers are published here, and are well supported.

"Dunnville was formerly a part of the township of Moulton, but was on January 1st, 1860, erected into a separate municipality, when John Jarron was elected reeve; in 1861 and 1862 Jabez Amsden was reeve; in 1863, John Parry; in 1864, Mattnew Gash; in 1865, Jabez Amsden; in 1866, Geo. Sime; in 1867 and 1868, Matthew Gash; in 1869, Angus Macdonald; in 1870 and 1871, John T. Johnson; in 1872, Harmon Root; in 1873, John T. Johnson; in 1874 and 1875, Harmon Root; in 1876, Matthew Gash; in 1877 and 1878, Arthur Boyle. The assessed value of the real and personal property of the village was in 1878, \$503,020; the amount of land within the corporate limits is 780 acres. Dunnville has several excellent hotels and many handsome residences. There is an efficient fire brigade and two brass bands. The Imperial Bank of Canada and the Canadian Bank of Commerce have agencies here, being the only banks doing business in the county of Haldimand."

Among the professional and business men of Dunnville in 1878 were: Thomas Armour, Arthur Boyle, N. A. Barnea, W. N. Braund, James Bushel, Sr., Chas. E. S. Black, Edgar Barker, Thos. Braund, John Bolger, Nelson Beebe, A. Brownson, William Baker, John Bell, Archibald Cooper, E. O. Cross, E. H. Docker, Joseph Fant, A. B. Ford, R. A. Harrison, S. Haney & Son, C. A. Hart, James Haney, James Jamieson, William Kerr, A. M. Kinnear, Fred C Lowe, Alexander Logan, R. F. Lattimore, Henry Lawe. L. Mas secar, Thomas McDonald, John Moblo, Charles May, F. E. Newman, John H. Nevins, F. J. Ramsey, Harmon Root, John Sowerby, Charles Stevens (J.P.), W. G. Scott, Scholfield Bros., John Stewart, John W. Holmes, James A. Sime, M. C. Upper, Jacob Vanderburg. White & Dougher, S. & E. Waltho, L. J. Weatherby, John A. Whitmore, David Price, Wm. Griffith, James Ro! ston, and Jas. McIndoe. clerk was C. E. S. Black.

The Dunnville Consolidated Telephone Co.



There is no comparison between the cost of a telephone and the benefits you receive 365 days in the year and 24 hours in the day.

A RESIDENCE PHONE COSTS LESS THAN 5c A DAY, GET ONE.

WALTER T. ROBB

BARRISTER

SOLICITOR, NOTARY, ETC.

MONEY TO LOAN AT LOWEST RATES OF INTEREST

DUNNVILLE - - ONTARIO

PHONE 26.

LOCK BOX 180

24

B. D. RATHWELL

BAKER

AND CONFECTIONER

THE STORE OF QUALITY

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO

J. P. EVANS

Successor to Alex. McIvor

ICE DEALER

TELEPHONE 65C.

BROAD STREET WEST

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

November

1	F.	All Saints—He	oly Da	ау —	First
?	S.	All Sou's.			
3	S.	Twenty-fourth	after	Pente	ecost.

4 M. St. Charles Borromeo, Bp. C. 5 T. SS. Zachary and Elizabeth.

6 W. St. Leonard, C.

7 T. St. Florence, Bp. C. 8 F. St. Godfrey, Bp. C.

8 F. St. Godfrey, Bp. C.9 S. Dedication of the Lateran Basilica.

10 S. Twenty-fifth after Pentecost.

11 M. St. Martin, Bp. C.

12 T. St. Martin, I, P. C. 13 W. St. Stanislaus Kostka, S.J., C.

14 T. St. Josaphat, Bp. M.

15 F. St. Gertrude, V. 16 S. St. Edmund, Bp. C

17 S. Twenty-sixth after Pentecost.

18 M. Dedication of the Basilicas of SS. Peter and Paul, App.

19 T. St. Elizabeth, Q. W. 20 W. St. Felix de Valois, C. F.

21 T. Presentation of B. V. M.

22 F. St. Cecilia, V. M. 23 S. St. Clement I, P. M

24 S. Twenty-seventh after Pentecost.

25 M. St. Catharine, V. M. 26 T. St. Sylvester, Ab.—St. Peter, M.

27 W. St. James, Intercisus, M. 28 T. SS. Stephen and Comp. M.M.

29 F. Vigil—St. Saturninus, Bp. M. 30 S. St. Andrew, Ap.

Announcements

NOVEMBER.

1—Holy Day of Obligation—Masses at 6 and 9.30. Benediction at 7.30 p.m.

2—Requiem High Mass at 8 a.m. 3—Children's Communion Sunday.

24-Holy Hour, 7 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

	D.	H.	Μ.	
New Moon	3	4	2	p.m
First Quarter				
Full Moon	18	2	33	a.m
Last Quarter	25	5	25	a.m.

M1. Chas. Stevens whose name appears in this list, has been continuously in the narness business here since 1851. He is the oldest harness maker in Ontario, and still works at his trade.

OLD TIME PARISHIONERS.

The members of St. Michael's Church may find it interesting to go over these names of old-time parishioners who lived in the town:

Jeremiah Sullivan, Thos. Carroll, Andrew Devine, Thos. McGill, Jaspen Murphy, Felix Murphy, Michael Cheary, John Timmons, Patrick O'Neill, Dennis McDonald, Matthew Culleton, Casper Heisler, Malcolm Miller, Michael McDonald, Patrick Hunter, John H.ckey, John Cooley, George Jewhurst, Peter Cullen, Chas. Eaton, Michael Cribbens, Richard Sasse, Dr. McLaughlin.

PORT MAITLAND

Probably the first white men who appeared in this neighborhood were the Rev. Fathers Dollier de Casson and Galinee, two Sulpitian priests, in the year 1669, or 249 years ago. They came down the river from Cainsville, and encamped on the site of the village of Port Maitland. Fifteen days they remained there, and then, for the sake of prudence, they retired a mile and a half into the woods, built a combination hut and chapel, said Mass three times a week, and remained five months.

In the Crown Lands' Department at Toronto there is an old map that shows an old Indian trail along the lake shore through Sherbrooke and Dunn. This trail was the first road used in these parts, and it crossed the Grand River at Port Maitland. The wash from the lake had formed a bar here, and this enabled travellers to ford the river at this point.

Port Maitland was the rendezvous of the Indians who went to the assistance of General Brock in 1812. Some came down the river, and others, coming along the lake from Long Point, joined them. When all had assembled, the party went down the lake to Point Abino, thence across to Queenston Heights.

In the year 1813 a British fleet under Barclay engaged with Commodore

Badgley & Houk

DEALERS IN

MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS AND SEWING MACHINES

LOCK BOX 42

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

SAVE FOR

HARRY COHEN

OLD IRON, RAGS, RUBBERS, COPPER AND BRASS ALSO CHICKEN

Anybody having same for sale will kindly call Phone 131A., or write P. O. Box 60.

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

DRUG STORE

DRUGS, STATIONERY, SCHOOL BOOKS, CHOCOLATES, ETC.

EYES TESTED FREE.

E. J. McKEE - Phm. B. ONTARIO DUNNVILLE

The Rex Cafe F. A. Borel

DINING ROOM FOR LADIES AND GENTLEMEN.

SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR PARTIES.

CANAL ST. WEST, DUNNVILLE

GOOD THINGS TO EAT AT

L. G. WERNER'S

DEALER IN

FANCY GROCERIES PROVISIONS

AND FRUITS

PHONE 50C

DUNNVILLE

"The Sign of the Big Tea Kettle"

MARSHALL'S

The Best Place in Town for-

Dinner, Tea or Toilet Sets, Aluminum, Granite and Tinware.

When wanting any of the above lines it will pay you to look our stock over.

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

Store Phone 61. Residence 157.

Up-to-Date Cash Meat Market

DEALER IN

CHOICEST FRESH AND HOME-CURED MEATS

Opp. Bank of Commerce, Dunnville

Photographer

All work guaranteed. Come and see the latest styles. All sizes. All prices. The latest in Folders.

STUDIO:

PENNY BLOCK, - DUNNVILLE

New

Fi's Full Last

December

1S. First of Adve	nt.

2 M. St. Bibiana, V. 5 T. St. Franci; Xavier, S.J., C.

St. Peter Chrysologus, Bp. D. 4 W.

5 T St. Sabas, Ab. First Fr.day.

6 F. 7 S. Vigil-St. Ambrose, Bp. D.

Second in Advent-Immaculate 8 S. Conception.

9 M. St. Leocadia.

10 T

St. Melchiades, P. C. St. Damasus, P. C. 11 W

Cur Lady of Guadalupe. St. Lucy, V. M.

13 F

14 S. St. Spiridion, Pp. C.

15 S. Third in Advent

16 M. St. Eusebius, Bp. M.

17 T St. Lagarus, B. C.

18 W. St. Auxentius, Bp.C. Ember Day 19 T.

St. Nemesion, M.

20 F Vigil-Ember Day.

Ember Day-St. Thomas, Ap. 21 S.

22 S. Fourth of Advent.

St. Servulus, C 23 M.

24 T. Vigil-Fast Day-St. Delphinus, Bp. C

25 W. Christmas-Our Lord's Birth, (Day of Obligation.)

St. Stephen, First Martyr.

27 F. St. John, Evangelist

28 S. Holy Innocents, MM.

29 S. Within Octave.

30 M. St. Sabinus, Pp.

31 T. St Sylves'er I. P. C.



Announcements

DECEMBER.

1-Children's Communion Sunday. 25-Christmas Day Masses at 8.00, 8.30 and 10.00 Benediction at 7.00 p.m.

MOON PHASES.

New Moon	H. 10	
First Quarter		
Full Moon		
Last Quarter		

Perry off Put-in-Bay, in the western part of Lake Erie, and was defeated. Four of these vessels, called the Mohawk, Rocket, Meteor and Comet, were pursued as far as Erie, where they evaded their pursuers and came across to Port Maitland and were scuttled at the mouth of the Grand. These boats were built at Chippewa in 1788. Many a year passed before the skeletons of these old boats disappeared below the river's surface. Just recently some of their timber has been fished out of the water, and from the well-preserved oak the late Francis Splatt made walking canes and presented them to Sir Robert Borden, Tremier of Canada, and the late Hon. J. P. Whitney, Premier of Ontario. At the same time a great many 20 and 35 lb. cannon balls were found in the wrecks, and also a few very old English coins. John Robinson and James Moss, members of the crew of one of these boats, settled at the Port then. Chas. Ross of Dunnville has now in his possession Robinson's sword, and many of the cannon balls referred to above. After the war of 1812 a Highand Regiment was stationed here. Up on the east side of the river there stood the old military cemetery which, as the years lengthened, was sadly wrecked by the work of the wind on the sand, and many graves were laid bare. The children of a later generation, while playing about this graveyard, found strange looking buttons, which on close inspection proved to be some of those that had been on the uniforms of the soldiers buried there long ago.

Wm. Moss was the bake in the very early days, and afterwards kept a general store. Squire King, a soldier, received his discharge while he was stationed here, and bought a large quantity of land in this vicinity. Wm. Hendershot and Henry Ross were the first fishermen to fish off this point Wm. Turner was one of the first Customs Officers. Thos, Connor was also an early settler, and Connor Bay, just east of the Port, is called after him. Charles Klingender, a pilot, licensed by the British Government, took the war boats in and out of the river.

A steamer tragedy took place a few miles off Port Maitland in 1848. The Despatch, carrying a company of Roy-

United Cigar Store

Telephone 12.

JACK JEWHURST

-Wholesale and Retail-

CIGARS, TOBACCOS AND CIGARETTES SMOKERS' SUNDRIES

LOCK ST.,

DUNNVILLE

CHAS. R. BILGER Insurance

Fire Life Accident Sickness Automobiles

Telephones :

Office 201. Residence 167.

OFFICE in Hickey Bldg. DUNNVILLE

GEO. KRAHLING

DEALER IN

MEN'S AND BOYS' SHOES

Shoe Shine Parlor in Connection. GRAND PACIFIC BLOCK

CHESTNUT ST. - DUNNVILLE

DUNNVILLE ROLLER MILLS

HANEY & KOHLER

Grist and Merchant Millers

Day Phone 33. Night Phone 81x.

OUR BRANDS:

Royal Quality Flour. White Swan Flour Buckwheat Flour.

All kinds of feed always on hand. DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

Franklin Bros.

Plumbing, Heating, Tinsmithing

Stoves and Tinware, Eavetroughing and Roofing, McClary's Gas Ranges and Sunshine Furnaces. Repair Work a Specialty.

(W. G. Scott's Old Stand)

OPP. PARK - DUNNVILLE

Don't Forget us when you want

LUMBER

FOR A HOUSE OR BARN

WE HAVE IT.

Also Cedar Fence Posts.

S. S. MOOTE

DUNNVILLE

CHAS. ROSS

MANUFACTURER OF

For Roads, Wells, Cisterns and Ditches; also for Building Purposes.

M. A. Smith's Old Stand

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

Day Phone 64A. Night Phone 191C

R. G. WERNER LIVERY

Buggy and Carriage Outfits

Automobile Service a Specialty

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

al W into lided fifty bodie long tery. Six

ard, wrec of ei In her v here her l iousl

Be Capt

of 19

for t had l stade throu tanne adelr tate out a name hims the t venie and in ble shape as to Villa and Darli built the 1 ward Road are Road

Th ick o Short mill Ab

north S. Fo In 18 north Wm. villag lon, nett, al Welsh Fusiliers, had just put out into the lake from here, when it collided with the Commerce and about fifty persons were drowned. Their bodies are buried side by side in a long trench in the Port Maitland cemetery.

Six scows, towed by the R. L. Howard, left this harbor in 1862, and were wrecked off Point Abino with the loss of eighteen lives.

In 1870 the steamer Guiding Star, on her way from Buffalo to Detroit, put in here to wood-up, and while at the dock her boiler burst, killing four and seriously scalding seven persons.

GANBORO

Benjamin Canby negotiated with Captain Dochstader for the purchase of 19,500 acres of the Dochstader Tract for the sum of \$20,000. This land had been obtained by Capt. John Dochstader from the Six Nation Indians through Chief Brant. Canby was a tanner by trade. He came from Philadelphia and was a Quaker. This estate Camby called Canboro, and laid out a village on the Talbot Road and named it Canboro, in compliment to himself very likely. In laying out the township he did not seek the convenience of settlers in arranging lots and concessions, as it was surveyed in blocks of unequal size and irregular shape, and all the roads were so built as to converge and centre on Canboro Village. He opened the Darling Road, and called it after his nephew, Thos. Darling. Besides the Talbot Road built before Canby's time, there were the Dunnville Road and the road towards Hamilton, and the Indiana Road. Other roads in the township are the Moote Goad and the River

The early settlers were Peter Metick on the Talbot Road, about 1811. Shortly after Matthew Smith built a mill in the village of Canboro.

About 1814 Samuel Birdsall settled north of the village. At an early date S. Follick settled on the Darling Road. In 1835 came Adam Moote to the north-east of the township, and in 1832 Wm. Fitch carried on business in the village. Shortly after Jeremiah Scanlon, Daniel Barry, Bartholomew Hartnett, Maurice Clifford, James Ryan,

James Kenny, Wm. Quinlan and Hubert Dumas came to the township.

Another early settler was Major Robinson. He bought seven hundred acres where Attercliffe Station is, built a mill and kept a store there. John Folinsbee settled in Canboro vilgage in 1834.

The township was reached in the early days of the first settlers by means of the Chippewa and Oswego Creeks. These men conveyed everything by canoes. There were no roads.

The first reeve was Barton Farr. Others to hold this office to 1878 were Amos Bradshaw, Jacob H. Bradshaw, Calvin S. Kelsy, Wm. F. Burk, Walter Melick and Samuel Swayze. The population in 1878 was 1000, and the land was assessed for \$288,905.

SHERBROOKE

One of the first white settlers in Sherbrooke was Jacob Niece, a Pennsylvanian of German descent. Seeking land on which good spring water could be obtained, some Indians guided him up the lake shore to lot 11, in the 2nd concession of Sherbrooke. There he purchased land in 1822, cleared it in a short time, and found very rich soil. William Furry, another Pennsylvanian of German descent, settled here about the same time. Other settlers at this early period were David Deamud, Daniel Dickout, John Knisley, John Lapp, Henry Minor, Hay Kinnard, all U. E. Loyalists, between 1820 and 1822. Two or three years later John Root, an American, settled near the east side of Sherbrooke. While the canal connecting Pt. Maitland with the Feeder was under construction James and John Corcoran and their sister Ellen settled near what is now known as The Locks. Their brothers Michael and Patrick came shortly after. Timothy Sullivan lived at Stromness in these days and afterwards moved to Dunn. Thos. Connor and Patrick Cummings were among the first lock tenders at The Locks. In 1834 Wm. Chalmers, a Scotchman, settled at-Lowbanks. Other arrivals were Archibald Galbraith in 1838; L. McCallum, 1852.

In these days the nearest market was at Chippewa. Wheat sold for 50 cents a bushel. In 1834 there were

Wait for the New Studebaker

Its a Small Car, a Classy Car, a Speedy Car, with low gasoline consumption. Don't fail to see it.

Agent for Studebaker and Maxwell Cars. Storage Batteries Tested and Repaired. Phone 208x.

WM. MARSHALL - DUNNVILLE

EVERY DAY IS

Bargain Pay

-AT-

HICKEY'S

DUNNVILLE

WELLAND

"The Cash Meat Market."

GEO. H. SMITH

DEALER IN

FRESH AND HOME CURED

POULTRY IN SEASON

Terms Strictly Cash. Phone 65X.

Opposite the Town Hall

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

GeoRochefort

Handles Everything
A SMOKER NEEDS

Hictoria Billiard Harlors

VICTORIA HOTEL BLOCK

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

EPH. HOOVER

GROCERIES, MEN'S AND BOY'S
CLOTHING AND GENTS'
FURNISHINGS

Our Own Special Coffee. Rose Baking Powder. Boys' Suits. Men's Suits. Overcoats and Furnishings.

Farm Produce Wanted. Phone 25.

DUNNVILLE OMTARIO

R. Newman & Co.

DEAUER IN

BOOTS, SHOES, SLIPPERS, RUB-BERS, TRUNKS, VALISES

SURGEON'S FOOT-BRACE

For Men and Women who suffer from foot troubles.

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

W. A. Coleberry

DRUGGIST AND OPTICIAN

Your Patronage is Appreciated

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

threby
who
use
One
This
high
B
with
elec

land

to t

Som Walt Geo. han, their taine Walt lecto Villa sprai the S was Port first were towns the r shore

Hugh
had r
in)
the la
settle
place
town
time of Johns
of lan
prove
a nun
Othe

Abo

as th

Johnso Paddo thews, and D Wm

and H Dickse three wagons in the township, owned by Messrs, Niece, Furry and Deamud who also had horses. Cther settlers used wood-shod sleds drawn by oxen One dollar paid the taxes on 100 acres. This then was considered excessively high. Money was very scarce.

Before 1875 Sherbrooke was united with Moulton. James Dougher was elected reeve in 1876, and was succeeded by Daniel Dickhout in 1877.

DUNN

This township was originally Indian land, but in 1832 it was surrendered to the government and shortly after wards thrown open for settlement Some years previous to this, however. Walter B. Sheehan, Henry F. Sheehan Geo, H. Sheehan and James M. Sheehan, had settled on a block of land their father, W. B. Sheehan, had obtained from the Six Nation Indian : Walter B. Sheehan was the first Collector of Customs in the County. Village of Haldimand, now Byng. sprang up simulaneously with the settlement of Dunnville. Except for the Sheehan Tract, the first settlement was effected on the lake shore near Port Maitland. A. P. Farrell was the first permanent settler of Dunn. There were no r ads, and the only way the township could be reached was down the river in canoes, or along the lake

About 1784, the block of land, known as the Earl Tract. was given to Capt. Hugh Earl of Butler's Rangers, who had married Capt. Jos. Brant's sister,

In 1834 James Plott bought Lot 2 on the lake shore. Then there were no settlers on the lake shore from this place as far west as the Rainham town line. Another settler about this time was William Blott. In 1835 Col. Johnson bought 700 or 800 acres of land and began immediately to improve it, thus giving employment to a number of poorer settlers.

Other settlers who came with Col Johnson were W. C. Lowe, Richard Paddock, Michard Constable, Job Matthews, Mrs. Col. Inlach and her sons, and Dr. Carter.

Wm. Bowden came in 1835, Jacob and Henry Stoner in 1839, Archibal! Dickson in 1837, and in 1840 Commodore Crawford bought land on the lake shore for his sons James and Charles. George and Thos. Docker were early settlers, and Peter Hall another in 1834. Abraham Moyer, Nicholas Sevenpiper, Jacob and Samuel Furry, all bought land on the Rainham Road. Henry Marshall came in the thirties. Henry King came in 1838. In 1840 Francis Ramsey, who was Superintendent of the Welland Canal Works at Dunnville, bought Lots 10 and 11, in the first concession. In the late forties came P. Martin, Jeremiah Sullivan, John and James Newman. Wm. Eillington came still later. The names of some others who came before 1850 are Robert Armour, W. R. Blott, Albert Bate, W. J. Booth, H. Bradford, James Barry, Albert T. Bate, J. Diette. Thomas Drake, Peter and W. Grant. Geo., Louis, Francis and Samuel Grant, A. Lapp, David Martin, R. G. Murdy (Byng), John E. Scott (Byng), R Stevens, B. G. Stoner and Henry Stoner, Jonas, King John, William and Henry Furry, Joseph and Henry King,

The towrsnip was assessed at \$182,666 in 1878, and the population was 828. The first reeve was Col. A. P. Farrell, then came Wm. Blott, Geo. Docker, Robt. Armour, Francis Ramsey, Wm. J. A'kens, Abram W. Thewlis, Henry Marshall, Hugh Bradford, Robt. Ramsey, Edward Logan, and in 1878 W. R. Blott.

MOULTON

In the year 1826 there were four or five families living in Moulton, and they were scattered along the river. The land belonged to the Six Nation Indians, and was surrendered by them to the government through the nego tiations of Wm. Jarvis. It next came into the hand; of Lord Selkirk, who gave a mortgage for the amount of the purchase money, but failed to pay it, resisting arrest at the hands of Sheriff Smith of Niagara. Selkirk then went on his way to Rupert's Land. Smith sold the land to the Hon. Henry J. Bolton for the sum of \$40.00, to pay the expenses of the litigation.

Squire Anthony was one of the early settlers, and lived a mile below Dunnville, where he built a steam grist and saw mill. Pelow him lived a man named Anger. Solomon Minor, 1825,

CHARLES PATTON

-DEALER IN-

All Kinds of the Best Farm Implements

CARRIAGES, BUGGIES, CUTTERS, CREAM SEPARATORS,
LITTER CARRIERS AND HAY TOOLS

Agent for the Popular Massey-Harris Implements

PHONES: DAY, 52X; NIGHT, 155Y.

DUNNVILLE

Ca

M

H

on

bo wl

ie1

Mi

Dr

Ja

W. N. Moote & Son

The Old Reliable Store

Invites you to call and inspect their fine stock of

Groceries & Chinaware

Quality and Price Guaranteed

D. MACKEY, PROPRIETOR

Buy Your Flour at the

DAISY MILLS

ONE PRICE TO ALL

USE DAISY FLOUR None Better

O. E. WILLSON - DUNNVILLE

The Grand

THEATRE

Geo. Vaughan, Lessee & Manager

HIGH-CLASS MOTION PICTURES

Change—Monday, Wednesday, Friday and Saturday.

J. B. SHEEHAN

HIGH-CLASS

CLOTHING AND GENTS'

FURNISHINGS

SHOFS AND HIGH-CRADE FURS

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

T.G.ORME

HARNESSMAKER

All kinds of Harness, also Buggies, Sleighs Etc., Etc.

(Agent for Gray Dort Motor Car)

CANAL STREET

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

GEO. CALBECK

Sanitary Plumbing, Heating, Tinsmithing and Gas Fitting

First class Plumbing and Hot Water Heating a Specialty, All kinds of Metal Roofing and Jobbing.

Repairs Promptly Attended to.

DUNNVILLE ONTARIO

lived where Dunnville now is. The building of the dam and the Welland Canal Feeder, 1826, made a big change in the neighborhood, and helped to build up the village of Dunnville, Ezra Moote came in 1831. In 1832 Andrew Hood settled on the Feeder. About 1835 came John Bowman, who lived on the north side of the Feeder. Dr. Kirk settled at Attercliffe Station in 1835. In 1838 Archibald Galbraith bought a farm near Stromness, in which village he had lived six or seven years. R. Pew (1834) and A. Price (1837) are other settlers.

John Lawson came to the Feeder Bridge in 1855, and shortly after Daniel Sullivan arrived in the same neighborhood. Some more old timers were Michael Ryan, Martin Hayes, Timothy Clifford, Owen Ryan, Patrick O'Neill, Patrick Warren, Feilx Murphy.

The first reeve of the township was Dr. John Jarron in 1850. It was Dr. Jarron who gave the vote that decided the placing of the County buildings at Cayuga instead of at Dunnville. Other

reeves were: L.J. Weatherby, A.Brownson, Wm. Benson, J. R. Brown, Jabez Amsden, Lauchlan McCallum, James Dougher, James Darragh, James G. Campbell, Wm. Mossip, Angus Macdonald, Wm. Hutchison, J hn Morrison, and in 1878 John Mumby. T. J. Galbraith, now of the Dunnville Customs, was township clerk in 1878.

EMBER DAYS.

The dates of the Ember Days for the year 1918 are:

March 20th, 22nd and 23rd, May 22nd, 24th and 25th, September 18th, 20th and 21st, December 18th, 20th and 21st.

MOVABLE FEASTS.

Ash Wednesday—Feb. 13th. Easter Sunday—March 31st. Whit Sunday—May 19th. Corpus Christi—May 30th. First Sunday in Advent—Dec. 1st.

"Everything in Clothing and Furnishings Here"

For Day or Night Wear for Men who are Particular



WE INVITE INSPECTION OF OUR CLOTHING, NECK-WEAR, SHIRTS, PYJAMAS, FTC.

YOU'LL DISCOVER THAT YOU CAN GET HIGH-GRADE CLOTHING AND FURNISH-INGS AT LOW PRICES HERE,

GOSS

The Clothier

A. KOURI

CONFECTIONERY AND FRUITS TOBACCO, CIGARS, CIGARETTES

Fine Roasted Peanuts

Re:Pure Olive Oil Imported from Italy.

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

J. JACOB

OANDY, FRUIT, NUTS
OLIVE Off.
CIGARS, PIPES, ETC.

CANAL STREET

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

The Adamac

DUNNVILLE

MEN'S AND BOYS CLOTHING, FURNISHINGS, SHOES, ETC. Work Shirts a Specialty

BEN COHEN.

MANAGER

J. P. BROWN

Next to Post Office.

THERE ES T ONE OF

Phone 187. Galbraith Block

We invite you to some and inspect our stock of

GROCERIES

which are of the highest quality and at lowest prices.

FARM PRODUCE WANTED.

P. I. SIME

FIRST-CLASS

Saddlery Supplies, Trunks, Valises

Full line Working Men's Pacts, Men's Suits, Serge and Tweeds, Pea Jackets and Shirts.

Raincoats, Mitts and Gloves

New Store—Grand Pacific Block
DUNNVILLE ONTARIO

McDONALD'S

SHAVING PARLORS

Shampooing, Massage a Specialty Everything Clean and Sanitary.

Clothes Cleaning in Connection

CANAL ST. OPP. FOUR-STORY
DUNNVILLE ONTARIO

M. Gandour

DEALER IN

Confectionery & Fruits

Sweet Olive Oil from Italy a Specialty.

DUNNVILLE

ONTARIO

ST. MICHAEL'S CHURCH DUNNVILLE, ONT.

MASSES.

Sunday, 8.30 and 10.30 (High Mass).

Holy Days, 6 and 9. Week Days, 7.45.

ROSARY AND BENEDICTION.

Resary and Benediction of the Blessed Sacrament: Sundays, 7 p.m.; week days, 7.30 p.m.

VICTORIA HOTEL

F. W. HYDE, PROP.

DUNNVILLE, ONTARIO



RATES

MEALS

BREAKFAST - 50 CENTS

SUPPER - 75

DINNER - 75

ROOMS

Room with Bath - \$1.75

Room without Bath - \$1.25

Second Floor, All Rooms \$1.00

Monarch Knitting Company Limited

F. R. LALOR, M. P., President

DUNNVILLE'S LARGEST INDUSTRY

Of the most modern and sanitary construction with floor space of several acres.

Five hundred employes are engaged in the manufacture of Sweater Coats for Men, Women, Youths, Boys, Girls and Infants. Also Men's and Boys' Pull Over Sweaters and Jerseys, Bathing Suits, Toques, Mufflers, Motor Scarfs, Senoritas, Skirts, Aviation Caps, Motor Hoods and Children's Suits and Rompers.

A full line of hosiery is also being manufactured

DUNNVILLE - ONTARIO